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 Via:  Email 
 November 24, 2020 
  
Dawn Bell 
Project Manager 
City of Lee’s Summit Development Center 
220 SE Green Street 
Lee's Summit, MO 64063 
Phone:  816.969.1242 
 
Email:  Dawn.Bell@cityofls.net 
    
RE: Streets of West Pryor 
 Lot 7 and Tract C Application Number PL2020274 
 Lee’s Summit, MO 
 
Dear Dawn: 
 
The following is provided as the formal Uniform Development Code modification request on the behalf of 
Streets of West Pryor, LLC for the Streets of West Pryor Lot 7 and Tract C preliminary development plan 
application number PL2020274and modification of the approved Streets of West Pryor Preliminary 
Development Plan approved by bill number 18-214.  The modifications requested are as follows: 
 
Parking count requirements:  The development ordinance requires the following parking ratios: 
 
Apartment Buildings 1 and 2: 

1. 1.5 parking spaces per 1 and 2 bedroom units (147 - 1&2 Bedroom units = 221 spaces) 
2. 2.0 Parking spaces per 3 bedroom units (37 – 3 bedroom units = 74 spaces) 
3. 0.5 spaces per unit for visitor parking. (184 units = 92 spaces) 
4. Total spaces required:  387 spaces 

 
Townhome Buildings 1 thru 83: 

1. 2.0 Parking spaces per 3 bedroom units (83 – 3 bedroom units = 166 spaces) 
2. 0.5 spaces per unit for visitor parking. (83 units = 42 spaces) 
3. Total spaces required:  208 spaces 

 
The ordinance does not provide specific guidance when the multi-family structures are a part of a mixed use 
development.  In addition, the UDO does not provide for assessment of driveway approaches and adjacent on 
street parking available to meet concentrated parking demand such as short duration social gatherings.  As 
requested by the Fire Department, no parking signs will be placed on the north/east side of Black Twig Circle 
(units 45 thru 83).   
 
We are requesting a modification as follows for the three story multifamily buildings and the Townhomes.  The 
proposed parking requirements are as follows: 
 
Apartment Buildings 1 and 2: 

1. 1.5 parking spaces per 1 and 2 bedroom units. (147 - 1&2 Bedroom units = 221 spaces) 
2. 2.0 parking spaces per each 3 bedroom unit. (37 – 3 bedroom units = 74 spaces) 
3. 0.25 spaces per unit for visitor parking.  (184 units = 46 spaces) 
4. Total spaces required:  341 spaces. 
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Townhomes Units 1 thru 83: 
1. 1.5 parking spaces per 1 and 2 bedroom units. (0 - 1&2 Bedroom units = 0 spaces) 
2. 2.0 parking spaces per each 3 bedroom unit. (83 – 3 bedroom units = 166 spaces) 
3. 0.25 spaces per unit for visitor parking.  (83 units = 21 spaces) 
4. Total spaces required:  187 spaces. 

 
 
The request is based on the attached ITE Manual Land Use:  221 Multi Family Housing (low rise).  In 
summary, the ITE Manual states that for General Urban/Suburban Mid-Rise Multifamily Housing not located 
within 1/2 mile of rail transit that a parking supply ratio of 1.7 parking spaces per dwelling unit is recommended. 
 
Conclusion: 
 

1. The apartment building 1 and 2 parking provided of 392 spaces exceeds the level of 341 spaces 
based on the modification request and 313 spaces recommended by the ITE Manual. 

2. The townhome units 1 thru 83 parking provided of 203 spaces exceeds the level of 187 spaces based 
on the modification request and 141 spaces recommended by the ITE Manual. 

 
High Impact Buffer: 
Table 8.890 of the Unified Development Ordinance requires a high impact buffer between R1 and RP4 zoning 
districts.  
 
High impact screening definition: A 100 percent opaque screen between land uses, which are dissimilar in 
character. When the proposed plan is considered to have a high impact on surrounding properties or the 
adjacent property is considered to have an adverse impact, both of the following shall be installed within the 
20-foot buffer yard: (1) a six-foot high masonry wall or opaque vinyl fence, (2) and low impact screening shall 
be planted on both sides of the wall or the fence. 
 
We are requesting a modification to allow the use of a “Medium Impact Screening” buffer along the Lowenstein 
frontage of the apartment and townhome development lots.  The Medium Impact Screen would be 20 feet in 
width and landscaped in accordance with Types A, B, C or combination thereof as prescribed by the UDO.   
 
The request is based on the following observations: 

1. The townhome structures will be separated from Lowenstein a distance ranging from 50 feet at the 
Black Twig/Lowenstein intersection to over 500 feet at the western extent of the townhome land area 
due to the presence of the existing lake feature. 

2. The lake feature creates a significant structural barrier between the R-1 and RP-4 districts.   
3. The use of an opaque screen along Lowenstein would obscure the lake feature visibility from 

pedestrians along Lowenstein.   
4. The request will also create a uniform buffer between the apartments and Lowenstein Park and a 

uniform pedestrian experience and make a pleasant transition from the apartments through the 
townhome frontage along Lowenstein.  The overall Use and Parking data table for Streets of West 
Pryor is attached.  The table has been updated to reflect the approved Final Development Plans for 
Lots 3, 6, 8 and 10 and the revised mixed use parking request summarized above. 

 
Parking Versus Street Frontage Tree and Shrub Requirement: 
 
The Uniform Development Ordinance Subdivision 3 Landscape Requirements is unclear regarding the 
application of Street Frontage Shrubs versus Parking Lot shrubs with respect to the application of the 
requirements to proposed Black Twig Circle due to the presence of head in parking.  The “Modification 
Request” seeks to clarify that the Black Twig Circle requires application specified in Section. 8.790. - 
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Landscaping—Minimum requirements: Section A.  Street frontage.  Therefore 1 tree per 30 lineal feet and 1 
shrub per 20 lineal feet, each side of Black Twig Circle is required.  Parking lot screening requirements of 
Section 8.820. - Screening, parking lot, would not apply to Black Twig Circle due to presence of on street 
parking. 
 
Thank you for your assistance.  If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
  Sincerely, 
 
  David N. Olson 
  Monarch Acquisitions, LLC 
 
  Matt Pennington 
  Streets of West Pryor, LLC 
Enclosures:  Reference ITE Manual 
cc: Drake Project File w/ 1 set enclosures      
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